
Oakland Cultural Affairs - Public Art Program, 1 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, 9th fl. Oakland, CA 94612 
 www.oaklandculturalarts.org 

Cultural Affairs Division 
Economic & Workforce Development Department 

Public Art Advisory Committee Meeting 
Monday, May 6, 2024 

5:30 - 7:30 pm 
Oakland City Hall 

1 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Oakland CA 94612 
Hearing Room 1  

There are two opportunities to make a comment during meetings– Public Comment and Open 
Forum. Zoom participation is strictly for viewing only. Comments will no longer be accepted via 
Zoom or telephone. How to Make a Comment: 
There are two opportunities for the public to address the Committee and City staff. The first 
opportunity is during the "Public Comment" period. The second opportunity is during the "Open 
Forum" period. Dialogue during the meeting with Commissioners, City staff, or its guest speakers is 
not permitted outside of the two comment periods. 

RE: ZOOM PARTICIPATION + COMMENT PERIODS 
All Commission meetings will be conducted in-person. The Public Art Advisory Committee is no longer 
accepting public comments via Zoom or telephone. Therefore, live comments must be made in-
person. An alternative option is to submit a written comment by 4:00 PM BEFORE the meeting starts 
to kzaremba@oaklandca.gov. Any comments received via email during the duration or after the 
meeting may not be entered into public record but will be shared with the Committee at a later time. 

Please click the link below to view the webinar. Zoom participation is strictly for viewing only. 

Comments will no longer be accepted via Zoom or telephone. Please click the link below to join the 

webinar: 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82598228963?pwd=xvE3fchtIK9RMv0lAogZbLcCqqRUnA.qHjDK7Cy6hN

CDK3s 

Passcode: 892976 

Or One tap mobile : 

+16694449171,,82598228963#,,,,*892976# US

+16699006833,,82598228963#,,,,*892976# US (San Jose)

Or Telephone: 

    Dial (for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location): 

+1 669 444 9171 US

Webinar ID: 825 9822 8963 

Passcode: 892976 

    International numbers available: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kfatdVmlH 

1 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024

http://www.oaklandculturalarts.org/


Oakland Cultural Affairs - Public Art Program, 1 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, 9th fl. Oakland, CA 94612 
 www.oaklandculturalarts.org 

Public Art Advisory Committee Meeting 
Monday, May 6, 2024 

5:30 - 7:30 pm 
Oakland City Hall 

1 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Oakland CA 94612 
Hearing Room 1  

 
AGENDA 

 
 

I. Welcome/Call to Order/Roll Call 

II. Land Acknowledgment 

III. Public Comment 

IV. Action Item: Adopt the Minutes from the March 4, 2024 Public Art Advisory Committee (PAAC) 

Meeting 

V. Informational Item: Broadway I-880 Undercrossing Public Art  

VI. Action Item: Review, Provide Comment and Approve Pre-Qualified Artist Roster - Draft Request 

for Qualifications  

VII. Informational Item: Public Art Coordinator Updates on Current Projects / Program Activity 

a. Public Art Program Administration- Current Ordinance and Proposed Legislation 

b. Recruitment: PAAC Skills Matrix and Recruitment 

c. Public Art in Private Development Projects/Affordable Housing Month Workshop 

d. Cultural Strategist in Government Report 

e. CIP Program: New Projects Planning and Collections Maintenance  
f. Artist-Community Initiated Projects  

 

VIII. Open Forum 

IX. Announcements:  

X. Agenda Building: Outline agenda for next regular meeting: June 3, 2024* 

XI. Adjourn 

 

 This meeting location is wheelchair accessible. To request disability-related accommodations or to request American 

Sign Language (ASL), Cantonese, Mandarin, or Spanish language interpreter, please email KZaremba@oaklandca.gov or 

call (510) 238-2155 Or 711 (for Relay Service) at least five (5) business days before the meeting. Please refrain from 

wearing scented products to this meeting as a courtesy to attendees with chemical sensitivities.  

 

Esta reunión es accesible para sillas de ruedas. Si desea solicitar adaptaciones relacionadas con discapacidades, o para pedir 

un intérprete de en español, Cantones, mandarín o de lenguaje de señas (ASL) por favor envié un correo electrónico a 

KZaremba@oaklandca.gov o llame al (510) 238-4949 o al 711 para servicio de retransmisión (Relay service) por lo menos 

cinco días hábiles antes de la reunión. Se le pide de favor que no use perfumes a esta reunión como cortesía para los que 

tienen sensibilidad a los productos químicos. Gracias.  

 

2 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024

http://www.oaklandculturalarts.org/
mailto:KZaremba@oaklandca.gov
mailto:KZaremba@oaklandca.gov


Oakland Cultural Affairs - Public Art Program, 1 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, 9th fl. Oakland, CA 94612 
 www.oaklandculturalarts.org 

會場有適合輪椅出⼊設施。需要殘障輔助設施, ⼿語, ⻄班⽛語, 粵語或國語翻譯服務, 請在會議前五個⼯作 

天電郵 KZaremba@oaklandca.gov 或致電 (510) 238‐4949或 711 (電話傳達服務)。請避免塗搽⾹氛產品，參加者可 

能對化學成分敏感。 

 

Địa điểm tổ chức cuộc họp có đường dành riêng cho xe lăn. Để yêu cầu các phương tiện hỗ trợ phục vụ người khuyết tật 

hoặc yêu cầu thông dịch viên ASL, tiếng Quảng Đông, tiếng Quan Thoại hoặc tiếng Tây Ban Nha, vui lòng gửi email đến 

địa chỉ KZaremba@oaklandca.gov hoặc gọi đến số (510) 238-4949 hoặc 711 (với Dịch vụ Tiếp âm) ít nhất năm (5) ngày 

làm việc trước khi cuộc họp diễn ra.Vui lòng không sử dụng các sản phẩm có mùi thơm khi tham gia cuộc họp này như một 

phép lịch sự đối với những người tham dự nhạy cảm đối với các chất hóa học. 

 

Cultural Affairs Division - Economic & Workforce Development Department  
Public Art Coordinator – Kristen Zaremba  
Phone: (510) 238-2155 
Recorded Agenda: (510) 238-2386  
Telecommunications Relay Service: 711  

 

3 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024

http://www.oaklandculturalarts.org/
mailto:KZaremba@oaklandca.gov
mailto:KZaremba@oaklandca.gov


Land Acknowledgement 
 

On behalf of the Cultural Affairs Commission & 
Public Art Advisory Committee: 

 

We want to take a moment to honor the 
traditions and territory we are a part of. Those 
of us on the land we now know as Oakland 
and lands all the way up to Albany are 
in Huichin (Hooch-yoon), the unceded territory 
of the Chochenyo (Cho-Chen-yo)-
speaking Confederated Villages of Lisjan (Lih-
Shawn) Ohlone. We stand with 
the Lisjan people and their right to legal 
recognition and benefits from the US 
Government.  
 

 

4 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



Cultural Affairs Division
Economic & Workforce Development Department

Public Art Advisory Committee
(PAAC)

March 4, 2024
1 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza

Hearing Room 4
Minutes

Members Present: Sarah Miller (Co-Chair), Marcus Guillard, Kaitlin Kushner, Katerina 
Leventi, Mario Navasero

Excused: Eric Murphy (Co-Chair), Jennifer Kesseler
Staff Present: Kristen Zaremba, Public Art Coordinator; Raquel Iglesias, Cultural 

Funding Coordinator; Roberto Bedoya, Cultural Affairs Manager; 
Josie de Mira, Assistant Public Art Coordinator

Guests: Quincy Williams - CIP Projects Coordinator, Oakland Parks, 
Recreation and Youth Development Department; Felicia Gotthelf -
Oakland Parks, Recreation & Youth Development Management 
Assistant; Holly Alonso - Executive Director of Friends of Peralta 
Hacienda Historical Park; Andrea Bacigalupo – Artist; Andre 
Sandford - State Assembly (District 18) Candidate

Meeting Chair: Sarah Miller 
*Indicates partial attendance 

⦁ Welcome/ Roll Call / Meeting called to order at 5:44 p.m. PAAC Chair Sarah 
Miller called the meeting to order and recited the Cultural Affairs 
Commission/Public Art Advisory Committee Land Acknowledgment. 

⦁ Public Comment: Roberto Bedoya, City of Oakland Cultural Affairs Manager 
addressed the Public Art Advisory Committee (PAAC) to acknowledge Cultural 
Affairs Division staff changes regarding the departure of Neha Balram, Cultural 
Affairs Commission Program Analyst, and the hiring of Josie de Mira, Public Art 
Program Analyst II. Bedoya thanked the PAAC for the work they do and 
contributions to the public art field and the City of Oakland.

1

5 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



⦁ Action Item: Adopt the Minutes from the February 5, 2024 Public Art Advisory 
Committee Meeting. K. Kushner motioned to approve the minutes. M. Guillard 
seconded; M. Navasero Aye; K. Leventi Aye. Motion passed unanimously.

⦁ Action Item: Review and Approve Public Art Sculptural Installations by Linda 
Yamane (Artist 1) and Walter Hood (Artist 2) for the Peralta Hacienda Historical 
Park, Lower Park, Creek Nature Area, 2465 34th Avenue (District 5). Public Art 
Coordinator Kristen Zaremba introduced the agenda item as a privately funded 
permanent public art installation on City property. The  proposal includes two 
sculptural installations to be placed in open spaces  on City property under 
Oakland Parks, Recreation and Youth Development (OPRYD) management. 
Felicia Gotthelf, OPRYD Management Assistant presented Holly Alonso, 
Executive Director of Friends of Peralta Hacienda Historical Park, who 
commissioned the artwork. Gotthelf showed support for the project and 
welcomed Alonso to the podium. Alonso provided historical context of the site 
as a Spanish colonial land grant and the intent of the artwork to decolonize the 
site by recognizing the presence of the Ohlone people and the strong indigenous 
identity of the Fruitvale neighborhood. Meetings and workshops with a number 
of native communities were conducted to hone themes and decide how to best 
represent the Ohlone culture through this art installation. These workshops 
included Corrina Gould, a prominent Huchiun Ohlone activist. Artists Walter 
Hood and Deja Gould (daughter of Corrina Gould) are addressing the loss of 
Ohlone language by creating monument word sculptures. Alonso presented the 
first phase of the project which includes one of three sculptures. (The two 
additional sculptures will be included in the second phase of the installation.) 
The sculpture will display the word “sii” meaning “water” in Chochenyo. Artwork 
will be participatory and consist of faceted grids that will be interwoven with 
fibers and yarn, incorporating the indigenous traditional practice of weaving. The 
facets were chosen by community members who are weavers. The sculpture will 
be placed twenty feet away from the bank of the creek, per regulations. The 
second component of the installation will be a story path telling the Ohlone 
creation story illustrated and retold by Linda Yamane about Kaknu, a peregrine 
falcon. The  plaques will be translated in English, Spanish and Chochenyo. 
Scientific Arts Studio will fabricate a sculpture placed on a long pole of Kaknu in 
flight, designed by Linda Yamane. A second model of the falcon will be fabricated 
and placed inside of the Peralta House exhibit. Scientific Arts Studio was chosen 
because of their involvement on a successful past project at Peralta Hacienda 
Park. Alonso and Zaremba referred to the renderings, maintenance, and funding 
plan in the packet. Zaremba noted that these installations are sited as new 
improvements that do not fall under existing parameters of the park. Alonso 
shared that Friends of Peralta Hacienda has been in contact with Planning and 
Zoning and the maintenance plan was approved by the Parks & Recreation 

2

6 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



Advisory Commission (PRAC) in January 2024. Committee members asked about 
the plan for the programming of the seasonal weaving. Alonso responded that 
there are several art programs based at the park with community members’ 
participation, and the weaving would be changed every six months. The 
Committee asked about mitigation for children climbing the sculptural structures 
and Alonso explained that they hope that the art will be respected but will 
discuss safety with the artists. Staff suggested signage to discourage climbing on 
the sculpture. There is signage planned for the ADA ramp as well as directly on 
the sculpture. Alonso described how the sculptures for the second phase of the 
project will interact with the sculpture of the first phase. Finally, Committee 
members raised concerns about how birds will interact with the sculpture. 
Alonso explained that the negative spaces of the grid are too small for birds to 
get caught. Committee members praised Alonso for a beautiful and thoughtful 
art installation. Motion: K. Kushner moved to approve public art sculptural 
installations by Linda Yamane (Artist 1) and Walter Hood (Artist 2) for the 
Peralta Hacienda Historical Park, Lower Park, Creek Nature Area, 2465 34th 
Avenue. K. Leventi seconded. S. Miller Aye; M. Navasero Aye; M. Guillard Aye. 
Motion passed unanimously. 

⦁ Action Item: Review and Approve Dimond Gateway Sculpture Proposal by 
artist Andrea Bacigalupo for the Dimond Gateway Garden, Northwest Corner 
of Lincoln and MacArthur Boulevard, Funded by Dimond Improvement 
Association (District 4). Quincy Williams, Assistant Capital Improvement 
Coordinator for OPRYD introduced the proposed sculpture by artist Andrea 
Bacigalupo, which is supported by the Dimond Improvement Association and the 
Dimond Beautification Committee and was approved by PRAC at their January 
2024 meeting. OPRYD also supports the project. Artist Andrea Bacigalupo shared 
that she has lived and worked in the Dimond neighborhood for over 20 years and 
felt this sculpture would fit well in the location while representing female 
sculptors. Bacigalupo explores themes of democracy, being architecturally 
inviting, relationships, and a sense of place. This location was selected because 
there is less risk of children climbing on the sculpture. Lighting and signage are 
not yet included in the proposal, but Bacigalupo is in discussion with a lighting 
designer. This is an existing concrete sculpture that was not specifically designed 
for the location. The sculpture is internally reinforced with steel and rebar which 
will prevent it from being broken in half. Artist Bacigalupo is not concerned 
about graffiti in the specific location but will research surface coatings and plans 
for graffiti removal. The sculpture installation plan has been prepared by an 
engineer and includes  a footing with a two-foot depth that will be installed by a 
licensed contractor. Staff confirmed that the sculpture height does not require a 
building permit for installation (under six feet). Signage for the sculpture is still 
being determined. Motion: K. Leventi moved to approve Dimond Gateway 

3

7 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



Sculpture Proposal by artist Andrea Bacigalupo for the Dimond Gateway 
Garden, Northwest Corner of Lincoln and MacArthur Boulevard, Funded by 
Dimond Improvement Association. M. Guillard seconded; K. Kushner Aye; M. 
Navasero Aye. Motion passed unanimously.

⦁ Informational Item: Public Art Coordinator Updates on Current Projects / 
Program Activity
a. Recruitment: PAAC, Artist Updates Cultural Affairs continues recruitment for 
additional PAAC members who bring a broad perspective. Roberto Bedoya spoke 
about the need for a PAAC liaison on the Cultural Affairs Commission. Zaremba 
discussed the Vermillion Bird installation by Patricia Ravarra in Oakland City Hall 
as a prompt for PAAC and Staff to consider what types of projects to share in the 
RFQ for the next round of artist recruitment.
b. CIP Program: New Projects Planning and Collections Maintenance The 
Oakland Department of Transportation (OakDOT) is requesting removal of the
I-880/Broadway underpass public art project by the artist group known as Team 
of Five, as part of the OakDOT streetscape improvement projects, Pubic Art staff 
are recommended review and discussion with the PAAC. Zaremba will share 
more background information with PAAC on previous discussions with PAAC 
regarding this installation, as well as with Caltrans around public art within the 
streetscape improvements. 
c. Public Art in Private Development Projects Zaremba discussed the 
applicability of the public art municipal code requirement for private 
development, noting that not all cities apply the requirement to affordable 
housing. Staff will be meeting with other City representatives to discuss options 
and will report back.  Zaremba shared information regarding state labor 
regulations that may require hiring of artists, including muralists, as licensed 
contractors for public and private building improvements, and how this affects 
public art across the state. The California Public Art Administrators (CAPAA) 
network is discussing how to communicate the value of free speech and 
copyright laws in public art, and the potential impacts of these regulations, to 
state representatives. This is an ongoing topic of interest. Staff will share more 
information when relevant for future discussion.
d. Artist-Community Initiated Projects Zaremba referenced a program initiated 
by staff in the early 1990s called Open Proposals, which included City 
commissioned, artist initiated, permanent and temporary public art projects. The 
program has been replicated intermittently as funding has been available. Staff 
would like to resurrect this program in the future and will present more 
background on the program at a future meeting
e. General Public Art Program Administration Zaremba acknowledged Raquel 
Iglesias, Cultural Funding Coordinator and welcomed new hire Josie de Mira, 
Assistant Public Art Coordinator. Roberto Bedoya, Cultural Affairs Manager, 

4

8 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



discussed the outlook for the Cultural Affairs Division for 2024-2025.

⦁ Open Forum: Andre Sandford, currently running for State Assembly (District 18) 
shared the importance of art in our public schools and encouraged the City to 
work with student artists within the school system.

⦁ Announcements

⦁ Agenda Building

⦁ Adjournment: M. Navasero moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:26. K. Kushner 
seconded. M. Guillard Aye; K. Leventi Aye; S. Miller Aye. Motion passed 
unanimously.

5

9 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



MEMORANDUM

TO: Public Art Advisory Committee FROM: Acacia Dupierre,  

Senior Transportation Planner 

Department of Transportation 

SUBJECT: Revisiting Broadway I-880 
Underpass Public Art Project 

DATE: May 6, 2024 

RECOMMENDATION 
That the Public Art Advisory Committee (PAAC) receive a presentation (Attachment A) and this 
informational memo to reintroduce discussion of the Broadway and I-880 Public Art Project.  Oakland 
Department of Transportation (OakDOT) Major Projects Division (MPD) is managing a suite of projects 
that will strengthen connections between West Oakland, Chinatown, Downtown, Old Oakland, and the 
Jack London District, while enhancing goods movement around the Port of Oakland and safety for all 
road users. Staff have secured state and federal funding for these projects that include two overlapping 
improvement plans at Broadway and I-880. This opportunity, along with longstanding engagement and 
lessons learned regarding this location provides the framework to revisit the undercrossing and the 
existing public art.  

SUMMARY 
In 2003 a public artwork by the artist group Team of Five, LLC was conceptualized and installed at 
Broadway under the I-880 to activate the space for people traveling through the undercrossing. Its 
design interpreted the theme of transportation infrastructure and was rooted in the goals of connecting 
communities across the dark and forgotten space. Twenty years later, time, context, wear and tear, best 
practices, community feedback, and new investment have changed around this location. There is now 
gained knowledge, best practices, new investment, funding, and most of all, a unique opportunity to 
revisit the site building on the original goals of the existing piece while further improving community 
connections. 

Communication with the Artist/s 
MPD staff has coordinated with Economic & Workforce Development (EWDD) / Cultural Affairs’ Public 
Art Program staff to communicate with the “Team of Five” artists who created the art piece. Nick Gomez 
has been identified as the team leader in past records. A meeting was held on Monday, April 23, 2024, 
with Kristen Zaremba EWDD, Josie de Mira EWDD, Acacia Dupierre OakDOT, Ruth Meza OakDOT, and 
Mr. Gomez, artist. Topics discussed were similar to this memo and attached presentation, including 
history of the art piece, overview of upcoming MPD projects, and this May 6, 2024 PAAC agenda item. 
MPD and Public Art staff have committed to continued communication with Mr. Gomez as specific 
community engagement for Undercrossing Improvements commences this year.  

Continued Engagement 
The engagement strategies for the Broadway Streetscape and Undercrossings Improvement Projects 
include iterative phases of feedback, which means reporting back to the public and indicating where and 
how comments have influenced the projects’ design and development. The streetscape project has been 

10 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024

https://www.oaklandca.gov/topics/major-projects-division


Page 2 

developed to final design, and construction is estimated to start in 2025 or 2026. The Undercrossings 
Improvement Project will start 35% design this spring, and with the onboarding of consultant teams 
engagement will continue with more detailed discussions on what a future redesign could entail with 
project priorities of safety, maintenance, lighting, and wayfinding.   

CONCLUSION 

The barrier created by the I-880 has continued to be identified as a challenge and a priority by the 
communities that surround it. This priority informed the initiative resulting in the selection and 
installation of the Broadway at I-880 Public Art piece. In the time since, lessons learned and some best 
practices have been established for these kinds of spaces through successful and challenging precedent 
projects, both locally and nationally. The future of the Broadway undercrossing has been discussed 
extensively in the time since the public art was installed. It remains a priority, and with the availability of 
best practices, recent investment, and project-specific resources, there is opportunity to revisit this 
discussion and the existing public art. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Acacia Dupierre 
Senior Transportation Planner 
Major Projects Division  
City of Oakland | Department of Transportation 
(510) 631-2314 | adupierre@oaklandca.gov

ATTACHMENTS 

A - 2024.05.06 PAAC_Revisiting Broadway I-880 Public Art_OakDOT MPD 

B - 2014.08.04_PAAC Item VII Broadway Underpass Hearing Agenda Report 

11 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



Revisiting 
Broadway at 
I-880 Public Art
Project

12 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



Outline
1. Introduction
2. Background
3. Current Conditions
4. Community Requests
5. New Investment and Upcoming Projects
6. OakDOT Major Projects Division Projects
7. Anticipated Timelines
8. Current Proposal

APPENDIX
Additional Documented Feedback
Broadway Undercrossing Lighting Analysis

Revisiting Broadway I-880 Public Art Project 

13 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



Introduction
In 2003 an art piece was conceptualized 
and installed at Broadway under the I-880 
to provide improved conditions for people 
traveling through the undercrossing

Twenty years later, time, context, wear and 
tear, best practices, community feedback, 
and new investment have changed around 
this location. 

There is now gained knowledge, 
resources, and opportunity to revisit the 
site and further improve community 
connections.

Revisiting Broadway I-880 Public Art Project 

14 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



Background
In 1996, the City of Oakland developed a 
Public Art Master Plan, held a competition to 
“bring light back to Broadway” and bridge the 
gap to the waterfront at night.

In 2000, ‘Team of Five’, proposal approved: 
theme of transportation infrastructure, using 
guardrails, lighting, and red paint to activate 
the space.

In 2014, PAAC Public Hearing: history, 
maintenance, future options pending funding.

In 2016, the installation was last cleaned and 
repaired.

Revisiting Broadway I-880 Public Art Project 

https://www.sfgate.com/bayarea/article/Art-Project-OKd-For-

Oakland-Underpass-250-000-2792562.php

15 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024

https://www.sfgate.com/bayarea/article/Art-Project-OKd-For-Oakland-Underpass-250-000-2792562.php
https://www.sfgate.com/bayarea/article/Art-Project-OKd-For-Oakland-Underpass-250-000-2792562.php


Current Conditions
Over time, guardrails have aged and -

• take up valuable sidewalk width
• create spaces that collect 

garbage
• encourage constructed 

structures that further block the 
sidewalk.

Up-lights and electric outputs are 
vulnerable to tampering. 

• protective cages have broken and 
become sidewalk obstacles

Revisiting Broadway I-880 Public Art Project 

2023 Clean CA lighting analysis does not meet national or City standards.16 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



• In progress Downtown Oakland Specific Plan

• 2023 Capital Improvement Program

• 2022 Walk This Way

• 2020 Howard Terminal Transportation Plan

• 2020 Transit Action Strategy

• 2019 Bike Plan

• 2018 West Oakland Specific Plan

• 2017 Pedestrian Plan

• 2015 Redefining the Underpass

• 2014 Measure BB TEP

• 2014 Lake Merritt Station Area Plan

• 2014 Broadway Transit Circulator Study

Revisiting Broadway I-880 Public Art Project 

Community Requests Engagement to Date

Several plans and 
programs have 
summarized 
requests for 
improved 
connections
under the I-880

17 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



Revisiting Broadway I-880 Public Art Project 

Most recently, several projects are in progress to improve connections 
between neighborhoods split by the I-880:

• Clean CA - Caltrans

• OAAP – Oakland Alameda Access Project – Caltrans and ACTC

• DOSP – Downtown Oakland Specific Plan – Oakland Department of 
Planning and Building

• Affordable Housing - 430 Broadway – Alameda County, EBALC

• Major Projects Division suite of projects – OakDOT, includes:

• Broadway Streetscape Improvements

• Undercrossings Improvement Project

New Investment and Upcoming Projects

18 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024

chrome-extension://efaidnbmnnnibpcajpcglclefindmkaj/https:/www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/04/1196000_Oakland_Alameda_Access_Project_FS_20240410.pdf
https://www.oaklandca.gov/topics/downtown-oakland-specific-plan
https://sfyimby.com/2023/08/plans-approved-for-430-broadway-in-jack-london-square-oakland.html
https://www.oaklandca.gov/projects/broadway-streetscape-improvements
https://www.oaklandca.gov/projects/undercrossing-improvements


Revisiting Broadway I-880 Public Art Project 

OakDOT Major Projects Division  Suite of projects in progress

• Projects will reconnect 
and strengthen 
access between 
Downtown, waterfront, 
and West Oakland 
neighborhoods

• Projects are 
interconnected by 
location, improvement 
types, timelines, and 
grant funding

Broadway
I-880 Public Art 

19 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



Revisiting Broadway I-880 Public Art Project 

Broadway Streetscape Improvements Project 

• “[Broadway is] an important corridor 
in Oakland’s mental map”

• "This intersection is terrifying for peds 
or bikes!"

• "Keep it [underpass] open, easy to see"

• "I walk on Washington instead”

• “[Needs] better signage and 
wayfinding at intersections, especially 
underpass and 6th Street”

Recent Community Engagement  Open House Fall 2023

Open House attendees commented on 
Broadway, MLK Jr Way, and 7th St project 
proposals20 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



Revisiting Broadway I-880 Public Art Project 
Broadway 
Streetscape 
Improvements 
Project 

Rendering of design on Broadway at 6th Ave, facing south

• Bus only lanes

• Improved 
crosswalk 
markings and 
ADA ramps

• Bulb 
outs/sidewalk 
extensions

• Realigned I-880 
on and off ramps

21 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



Revisiting Broadway I-880 Public Art Project 
Broadway 
Streetscape 
Improvements 
Project 

Plan view of design Broadway 
under I-880

• Bus only lanes

• Raised center median

• Improved crosswalk 
markings and ADA 
ramps

• Bulb outs/sidewalk 
extensions

• Realigned I-880 on 
and off ramps 22 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



Revisiting Broadway I-880 Public Art Project 

Undercrossing Improvements Project
Redesign four I-880 
undercrossing locations

• Broadway
• Washington Street
• MLK Jr Way
• 7th Street

Design priorities informed by 
previous community feedback

• Safety
• Lighting
• Wayfinding
• Near and long-term 

maintenance 23 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



Revisiting Broadway I-880 Public Art Project 

Spring 2024 2024 - 2026 2025 - 2026 2026 - 2027 2028

Broadway 
Streetscape 
Improvement 
Project

Finalize 
100% 
designs

Anticipated 
start of 
construction Construction 

Completion 
Deadline

Undercrossings 
Improvement 
Project

Start 
design

Community 
engagement 
and feedback 
on design

Finalize 100% 
designs

Anticipated 
start of 
construction

24 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



Revisiting Broadway I-880 Public Art Project 

Current Proposal
• Redesign Broadway I-880 Undercrossing with safety, wayfinding, and 

maintenance as priorities.

• Work towards deaccession and removal of existing guardrail and lighting 
elements, based on community feedback, lessons learned, and best 
practices.

25 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



Major Projects Division

mpd@oaklandca.gov

Broadway Streetscape Improvement Project

Undercrossings Improvement Project

26 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024

https://www.oaklandca.gov/topics/major-projects-division
mailto:mpd@oaklandca.gov
https://www.oaklandca.gov/projects/broadway-streetscape-improvements
https://www.oaklandca.gov/projects/undercrossing-improvements


APPENDIX
Documented Feedback

Broadway Undercrossing Lighting Analysis

27 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



Summary of 521 Survey Responses

• Respondents were “most excited” about improved pedestrian lighting at the intersections with I-880 

• Top 5 responses (more than half of respondents) prioritize undercrossing improvements on Broadway

• Better wayfinding for drivers

• Increased lighting and safety for cyclists

• Safety and cleanliness, removing trash and debris

• 28% would like increased general safety for the public, 10% specifically mention safety and cleanliness 

in the underpass

• 26% would like to see more cleanliness, including addressing garbage, dumping, and the freeway 

underpass

• 71% would like unhoused encampments addressed in the project, with the underpass being 

mentioned most

Recent Community Engagement  Summer 2023 Engagement

Broadway Streetscape Improvements Project 

DOCUMENTED FEEDBACK

BROADWAY at I-880

28 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



• “I would like improvements to underpasses, but that is mostly meaning wanting support for the 
homeless population in housing and other services”

• “Improvements to the Broadway I-880 underpass with lighting and artistic elements to increase 
visibility and promote community identity” 

• “Keeping the 880 underpass CLEAN and SAFE. This includes regular trash collection and power 
washing. The sidewalks are currently filthy and smell and I never want to walk or bring my dog 
through there.”

• “Improvements to the Broadway I-880 underpass with lighting and artistic elements  to increase 
visibility and promote community identity”

 
• The freeway underpass at Broadway needs a cleanup in addition to better lighting for safety. I DO 

NOT feel comfortable walking under it “.

DOCUMENTED FEEDBACK

BROADWAY at I-880

Recent Community Engagement  Summer 2023 Engagement

Broadway Streetscape Improvements Project 

29 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



DOCUMENTED FEEDBACK

BROADWAY at I-880

2022 Walk This Way! An Underpass Improvement Toolkit

https://cao-94612.s3.us-west-2.amazonaws.com/documents/WTW-Underpass-Improvement-Toolkit-220218.pdf

• Adequate lighting needed

• Built environment elements create 
vulnerable spaces for pedestrians

• Unpleasant acoustics 

30 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



DOCUMENTED FEEDBACK

BROADWAY at I-880

2018 JLID Community Charrette

https://www.dropbox.com/sh/o7lauadijnt5pre/AAD4IlKulMAZzdHIHs_qsJX_a?dl=0

31 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



2018 JLID Community Survey

https://jacklondonoakland.org/s/Stakeholder-Survey-2018.pdf

DOCUMENTED FEEDBACK

BROADWAY at I-880

32 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024

https://jacklondonoakland.org/s/Stakeholder-Survey-2018.pdf


https://d3n8a8pro7vhmx.cloudfront.net/jacklondondistrict/pages/218/attachments/original/1464726070/151202_Glab_Test_Print_single_sided_11x17_
color_1_copy.pdf?1464726070

2015 G Lab / Gensler Report REDEFINING THE UNDERPASS 

• “The dark underbelly of the scar across 
Oakland”

• “These underpasses need to provide a safe 
and balanced passage for pedestrians, 
bicyclists, and drivers”

• “Animate the spaces with local art and 
sculpture making them uniquely Oakland.”

• “Fill the void and activate these undesirable 
spaces with programming both fixed and 
temporary.”

DOCUMENTED FEEDBACK

BROADWAY at I-880

33 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024

https://d3n8a8pro7vhmx.cloudfront.net/jacklondondistrict/pages/218/attachments/original/1464726070/151202_Glab_Test_Print_single_sided_11x17_color_1_copy.pdf?1464726070
https://d3n8a8pro7vhmx.cloudfront.net/jacklondondistrict/pages/218/attachments/original/1464726070/151202_Glab_Test_Print_single_sided_11x17_color_1_copy.pdf?1464726070


2015 JLID Survey

What is the most urgent issue at the underpasses?

It doesnt feel safe or welcoming. After dark I will not walk through there on my own. It feels like an invisible barrier between 
downtown Oakland and Jack London Square.
7/15/2014 01:22 PM

Lighting in area behind guardrail "sculpture" -- for both aesthetics and safety.
7/5/2014 09:46 AM

pee smell/pigeon droppings
6/27/2014 12:12 PM

Safety and cleanliness
6/16/2014 08:42 PM

To have all underpasses be safe, clean and well lighted.
6/11/2014 08:07 AM

https://www.surveymonkey.com/results/SM-556YS5NV/

DOCUMENTED FEEDBACK

BROADWAY at I-880

34 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024

https://www.surveymonkey.com/results/SM-556YS5NV/


2015 JLID Survey

What is your dream solution for the underpasses?  (Please be as unrealistic and creative as you like!)
The intersections around the underpasses could all use "scramble" signal phases for both pedestrians and bicyclists to use, similar to those in Chinatown, allowing non-
motorized road users to proceed across the intersection without having to worry about cars approaching from multiple directions, even people turning right on red. 

To discourage trash and loitering, there could be solid walls along the underpasses with no nooks and crannies for litter to collect. I would also suggest that the walls 
have a curved slope as they meet the sidewalk, so that there is no obvious and comfortable place for people to hang out. 

Broadway heading south towards the 880 underpass is also very confusing, as only the rightmost lane goes through, with the left two lanes entering the Posey Tube 
and 880, but it is not well marked or signed so many drivers end up changing lanes at the last second. For northbound Broadway heading towards 880 the lanes are 
also confusing, as the rightmost lane goes to 5th St, 880 west, or the Posey Tube, and the middle and leftmost lanes go straight through. However, after the 
intersection with 5th St all the lanes shift over to create a dedicated left turn lane onto 880 east, but the shift is not handled very elegantly. 

My suggestion would be to provide just one northbound straight-through lane on Broadway under the highway that lines up with the one south of 5th St, and to turn 
the rightmost lane in the underpass into a wider sidewalk. For northbound Broadway after the underpass, the free right turn lane off the highway is very hazardous for 
both pedestrians and bicyclists, and really needs to go. All traffic coming off the highway should proceed straight toward the intersection with Broadway, and than 
anyone heading north can just turn to the right there, but at a much slower speed. 

The space reclaimed from the free right turn off the highway could be turned into a nice pocket park, rain garden, or mini dog park. 

Finally, significantly increasing the lighting in the underpasses during the daytime, so that there is little to no transition between the open streets with sunlight and 
the underpasses with artificial light, will mean that one's eyes don't need to adjust and there are no dangerous moments of "blindness" while proceeding through.
7/23/2014 04:16 PM

https://www.surveymonkey.com/results/SM-556YS5NV/

DOCUMENTED FEEDBACK

BROADWAY at I-880

35 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024

https://www.surveymonkey.com/results/SM-556YS5NV/


See Click Fix
Reported:
on 06/04/2013

Service Request ID:
463712
DESCRIPTION
The underpass on Broadway between sixth and fifth street is is really filthy and smelly with garbage, trash, etc. Needs high pressure cleaning every 
couple of weeks. People use this to walk to BART. This is an ongoing problem that needs attention. The "artwork" (everyone thinks it is freeway fencing, 
but my understanding is that Oakland actually paid for this) also needs to be removed so that it is easier to keep clean, since garbage accumulates 
between there and the fence, itinerants use the semi-closed in portion for camping while passing through, and it looks really ugly.

https://seeclickfix.com/issues/555605-trash-smells-bird-refuse

2013 See Click Fix

DOCUMENTED FEEDBACK

BROADWAY at I-880

36 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024

https://seeclickfix.com/issues/555605-trash-smells-bird-refuse


Clean CA Lighting Analysis

BROADWAY

West East

2' above Floor Floor 
Level

2' above 
Floor

Floor 
Level

L

3.66 3.93 2.34 2.2

L

2.23 2.25 2.35 2.25

3.65 3.47 2.87 2.23

4.47 3.93 2.05 1.86

3.05 2.3 1.76 1.73

LT 2.09 1.85

0.45 0.54

R

3.45 3.2 3.3 2.8

R

2.59 2.47 1.87 1.76

4.25 3.85 1.94 1.85

4.96 4.5 1.89 1.75

3.24 2.85 1.49 1.5

0.52 0.57

Average 3.56 3.28 1.92 1.76

Required 2 4 2 4

Readings are below the 
average required

Consultants did a nighttime Photometric field review of the Broadway undercrossing and 
compared results to the American National Standard Practice for Roadway Lighting 
(ANSI/IESNA RP‐8) as mentioned in the City of Oakland’s Street Light Design Manual.

37 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



Cultural Arts & Marketing 
Department of Economic & Workforce Development 

ITEM VII AGENDA REPORT 

To: Public Art Advisory Committee 
Attn: Kevin Chen and Judy Moran, Co-chairs 
From: Steven Huss, Cultural Arts Manager 
Date: August 4, 2014  
RE: Public Hearing on I-880/Broadway Underpass Public Art Project and Potential 

Alterations, Modifications or Development of the Project 

The I-880/Broadway Underpass is currently the focus of much attention and effort toward 
ongoing maintenance and long-term improvements.  Within this context, the Public Art Advisory 
Committee’s charge is to determine goals for the existing art project. 

At its public hearing on August 4, the PAAC will review the art project’s history as well as 
recent improvements to the underpass, consider future options for the existing artwork, and 
address its general maintenance.  Potential alterations, modifications or development of the 
existing project will be assessed, pending availability of funds.  To the extent feasible, the lead 
artist will be consulted on any changes to the art project. 

As background for the PAAC’s review and discussion, a brief history of the project is recapped 
below. 

Historical Overview 

 The notion of an art project in the Broadway Underpass began in 1996 as part of a master
plan to illuminate Broadway through public art1. Merchants and City officials were
concerned that the Broadway Underpass was perceived as dark, foreboding and unsafe. The
goal of the public art improvement project was to increase two-way pedestrian flow and
improve the experience of motorists between downtown and Jack London Square by creating
a sense of safety and a brighter, better-lit, more inviting underpass environment.

 A Request for Submissions was issued in 1999 for a $250,000 public art commission that
would address the entire underpass space.  23 applications were received.  A seven-member
selection panel, with technical advisory members, selected five artists/artist teams to develop
design proposals.  The semi-finalists were Seyed Alavi, Milton Komisar, Michael
Muscardini, John Roloff, and the Team of Five.

1 REDISCOVERING BROADWAY: A Public Art Master Plan, 1996, City of Oakland Public Art Program 

38 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



Public Art Advisory Committee / I-880 Broadway Underpass Artwork Public Hearing 
PAAC August 4, 2014    Item VII 

2

 After thorough review of the design proposals, the panel recommended the proposal by the
Team of Five, a group of young Oakland-based artists and architects, with lead artist Nick
Gomez.  The PAAC and the Cultural Affairs Commission (CAC) found the proposal to be
novel, creative and whimsical, while addressing functional needs in innovative ways.  The
Team of Five proposal was approved by the PAAC on December 6, 1999, by the CAC on
January 24, 2000, and by the Oakland Redevelopment Agency/City Council on April 18,
2000.

 Project description from June 30, 2003 staff report to PAAC: … the project endeavors to use
the materials of transportation to transform the underpass space into a virtual room where
the pedestrian experiences relief from the darkness and heaviness of the superstructure,
without discounting its significance and presence.  The design of the project includes the
molding of the sidewalk on both sides of the street, with rubber tiles and poured-in-place
rubber, to create an undulating walking surface.  The existing chain link fence will be set
back and in front of it, a series of standard freeway guardrails will be positioned, bent and
patterned to create a semi-transparent wall that reflects more ambient light into the space
and adds an element of playfulness and design to the “barrier” between the pedestrian and
the adjacent parking lots.  A pattern of small (1/2”) chainlink mesh will be strategically
affixed in places along the backside of the guardrails to hinder climbing while articulating a
subtle visual pattern.  The massive columns of the freeway structure will be painted red, and
uplit, and additional lighting will be provided at the column tops to project more light into
the overall space.  Finally, a light sculpture will be recessed into the channel of the freeway
structure overhead.  Its lights will respond to the traffic on the freeway by placing
photosensors that will send a pulse of light with each passing car.

 As stated above, the key components of Team of Five’s design were:
1) A tiered metal sculpture using freeway guardrails,
2) The existing I-880 support columns painted red,
3) Uplighting on the columns with additional lighting on the column tops,
4) A rubberized, undulating sidewalk surface, and
5) A kinetic light sculpture crossing Broadway on the underside of the freeway structure.

 Contract negotiations with the Team of Five were prolonged due to a variety of factors.
Ultimately, in May 2002, it was agreed that the artist team would provide design only.  A
contract with the Team of Five in the amount of $32,615 was executed in May 2002.  The
scope included design of the project and development of plans, sections and elevation
drawings.

 Further delays were caused by the increase in materials costs over the years, and additional
management and engineering expenses, against an established budget of $250,000.

 Certain elements of the proposal presented challenges, for reasons of cost, practicality,
agency regulations and policy issues.  In a letter dated October 27, 2003, the Team of Five
proposed removal of the light sculpture from the project scope due to the cost implications.
They also proposed elimination of the “rolling sidewalk” in favor of a flat walk, to save the

39 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



Public Art Advisory Committee / I-880 Broadway Underpass Artwork Public Hearing 
PAAC August 4, 2014    Item VII 

 3 

high expense of this element.  They added “we feel confident that the project can be built 
with roughly the same character as originally proposed.” 

 
 The Public Works Agency (PWA) Construction Management Division was contracted to 

manage the development of the bid package, obtain permits from internal and outside 
agencies (including CalTrans, BART, PG&E, Traffic Engineering, Electrical Services, ADA 
Compliance, and Street Maintenance), put the project out for competitive bid, and manage 
the construction to completion. 

 
 Construction documents based on the Team of Five specifications were prepared by PWA, 

then reviewed and found “fully acceptable to the Team of Five” (per letter from the team). 
 
 The construction project was bid out with items 1 through 3 as the ‘base bid’ package, and 

items 4 and 5 as alternates.  Note that the awarded construction contract included only items 
1 through 3.   

 
 The Public Art Program allocated additional funds to the project.  On July 20, 2004, the City 

Council/Oakland Redevelopment Agency approved a not-to-exceed budget of $385,000, and 
authorized PWA to negotiate a contract, which it did, awarding the construction contract to 
local firm Ray’s Electric.  Notice to Proceed was given on September 27, 2004.  The final 
adjusted contract amount was $308,282.  Public Art staff maintained oversight of the project 
and approved construction invoices. 

 
 Installation was completed in late summer 2005 by the contractor Ray’s Electric, overseen by 

the Project Delivery division of PWA.  
 
 Over time, the uplights at the base of the columns have been vandalized or broken down due 

to environmental conditions; most of the fixtures are now gone.  Unintentionally, the 
sculptural guardrails provided extended perching space for the existing pigeon population at 
the site and the guardrails have become splattered with droppings.  A section of guardrail 
sculpture was damaged by a car in 2011 (though it has since been repaired).  Trash collects 
behind the sculpture foundation posts.  Also, there is considerable concern that the sculpture 
project created contained, secluded spaces for the homeless to hide and sleep in. 

 
 In 2011-12, Oakland Redevelopment Agency (ORA) staff identified key blighted “hotspots” 

in Oakland and chose several locations to fast-track for improvements.  The Broadway 
Underpass was one of the sites chosen.  At that time, Public Art staff contacted artist team 
leader Nick Gomez and discussed potential improvements to the artwork project, such as new 
supplementary lighting.  ORA staff led a parallel effort to develop new signage and 
wayfinding for the sides of the bridge overpass.  However, with the elimination of 
Redevelopment, staff was reduced, funds were lost, and the improvement projects were put 
on hold. 

 
 Efforts to improve the underpass have accelerated recently with the engagement of the new 

Jack London Improvement District, interest from the Jack London District Association, and 
new leadership at Visit Oakland (formerly the Oakland Convention & Visitors Bureau).  On 

40 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



Public Art Advisory Committee / I-880 Broadway Underpass Artwork Public Hearing 
PAAC August 4, 2014    Item VII 

4

April 30, 2014, City Councilmember Lynette McElhaney hosted a town hall meeting to hear 
community concerns, and to work toward a shared vision and identify potential components 
of an improved underpass.  On June 19, the JLID led a walking tour of the underpass, and 
followed this up on July 16 with a community workshop to explore potential solutions and 
visions for the underpass.  Meanwhile, the Public Art Program has re-engaged lead artist 
Nick Gomez in the collaborative effort toward solutions. 

 New lighting has been installed in the underpass.  PWA is providing routine clean-up of the
underpass area with trash collection and monthly steam cleaning.  JLID Ambassadors also
help to clean and maintain the underpass.

As part of a broad-based City and community partnership, the PAAC and the Public Art Program 
are participating in the makeover of the I-880/Broadway Underpass.  The PAAC’s initial and key 
responsibility is to exercise prudent stewardship over the existing artwork and to make a 
determination regarding its future. 

41 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



42 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



43 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



44 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



45 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



46 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



47 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



48 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



C u l t u r a l  A f f a i r s  D i v i s i o n  
Economic & Workforce Development  

www.oaklandculturalarts.org 

CALL TO ARTISTS: 
OAKLAND 2024 PRE-QUALIFIED ARTIST ROSTER 

Deadline: July 31st, 2024 

The Oakland Public Art Program is inviting California artists at all stages of their careers to 
submit applications for inclusion in a Pre-Qualified Artist Roster.  Selected artists will be 
considered for public art commissions from the City of Oakland to create new work for 
various city improvement projects. All experience levels are welcome and the deadline to 
apply is July 31, 2024, 11:59 PST. 

BACKGROUND 

The City of Oakland's Public Art Program, established in 1989, commissions original works of 
art for public spaces throughout Oakland. The program enriches the city’s visual 
environment, integrates the creativity of artists into public construction projects, and provides 
a means for residents and visitors to enjoy and experience the richness and diversity of 
Oakland culture. For more information about the Public Art Program visit the City’s website. 

Our program is guided by the principles uplifted in Belonging in Oakland, the City’s cultural 
development plan that aims to promote cultural equity, belonging, and well-being for all 
communities of Oakland.  

OPPORTUNITY 

Artists selected for the pre-qualified artist roster will be used by Public Art Program staff to 
recommend appropriate applicants for a range of city-funded improvement projects. 
Improvement projects include but are not limited to various streetscape projects and city 
facilities and parks including libraries, fire stations, and recreation facilities. These projects 
will be focused primarily in the 2-D and 3-D visual arts, but may include interdisciplinary 
components (e.g. new media, electronic, performing, literary arts) if relevant to the project’s 
overall concept. Projects that are commissioned through this artist roster are primarily 
permanent artwork that is site responsive and/or integrated. The Pre-Qualified Artist Roster 
will be the primary source for selecting newly commissioned artists. 

49 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024

http://www.oaklandculturalarts.org/
https://www.oaklandca.gov/topics/public-art-in-oakland
https://www.oaklandca.gov/resources/cultural-plan


Upcoming sites/projects may include but are not limited to 14th Street Streetscape 
Improvements, DeFremery Park, Mosswood Recreational Center, Estuary Park, and Lincoln 
Park Recreation Center, Fire Station 29. Stay tuned for more! 

ELIGIBILITY 

This call is open to practicing artists, visual art professionals, and artist teams living or 
working in the State of California. Arts organizations, companies, or programs are not eligible. 

Artists who apply as part of a team may also apply as an individual artist, in a separate 
application.  

Oakland artists residing in the Bay Area are strongly encouraged to apply. 

*Artists who have successfully completed the Cultural Strategist in Government Workshops
with ABG Art Group in 2023, are pre-approved for this artist roster but still need to submit
materials and information through the application process outlined below for
administrative purposes. Please contact us if you have any questions.

City of Oakland employees, Public Art Advisory Committee members, and members of other 
standing City committees are not eligible to apply for this opportunity.  

BUDGETS 

Budgets for commissioned public art projects will range from $15,000 to $500,000, including 
all artist fees for artwork design, fabrication and installation, project coordination, insurance, 
permits, engineering, accessibility design, and travel. Public Art funding comes from a 1.5% 
allocation from all eligible City capital improvement projects, private contributions and eligible 
grant revenue. 

Artists may choose to be considered only for projects with budgets under $100,000, or only 
for projects with budgets over $100,000, or both, as part of the application process. Please 
select the appropriate categories in the application.  

ESTIMATED TIMELINE 

• Application Open: June 2024
• Application Webinar: June 2024
• Submission Deadline July 31, 2024 – 11:59 PST
• Applicant Notifications: early October 2024

*Additional outreach events TBD

SELECTION PROCESS 

Submittals from artists and artist teams will be pre-screened by City staff for compliance with 
the call to artists’ requirements. A selection panel of artists/arts professionals, City staff, and 
representatives from the Oakland Public Art Advisory Committee will review the applications 
and recommend applicants for the pre-qualified artist roster. The recommended artists will be 

50 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024

https://www.oaklandca.gov/boards-commissions/public-art-advisory-committee


approved by the Public Art Advisory Committee prior to being considered for public art 
commissions.  

In addition to a commitment to racial equity, the City of Oakland’s Public Art Policies require 
that a majority of public art commissions or acquisitions shall be awarded to Oakland-based 
artists. 

SELECTION CRITERIA  

Artists will be selected based on the following criteria: 

• Artist communicates innovation, creativity and originality with a unique vision or perspective;
• Appropriateness of artist’s medium and style for prospective projects;
• Demonstrated ability or understanding of cultural competency and a thoughtful approach to

engaging a community and/or site;
• Demonstrated ability or readiness to execute site-responsive work, in alignment with project

schedules and budgets.
• Artist communicates flexibility and collaborative attitude with stakeholders and project

teams. (Familiarity with public agencies and construction processes will be a requirement
for some projects.)

SUBMISSION PROCESS 

You will be asked to provide the following information on the application: 

• Name & Contact Information Please submit your name, phone, email, mailing
address, website/social media (optional). Your personal contact information will only
be shared with Public Art Program staff.

• Artwork Samples: Submit 8-10 images of your completed work that demonstrate
your creative skills and aesthetic approach. Up to 2 of the past work submissions may
be video files (one minute or less). If applying as a team, please submit images that
show the result of your team’s collaboration if available and specify your role in the
creation of the work.

• Image Descriptions: When you upload your images, SlideRoom will prompt you to
provide information about each image. Please include the title, medium, dimensions,
year, and a brief description (2 sentences maximum) about each work. If you are
including examples of completed public art commissions, please include the budget.

• Artist Statement/Bio: (2000 characters maximum) Describe your experience and
approach to artmaking, and the inspirations/interests reflected in your artwork. Share
your experience in public art, and on design team collaborations, if applicable. If you
have not previously executed a public art project, explain how you would approach
working in this field.

*If applying as a team, describe your individual roles. If your team has not worked
together before, please describe how you propose to do so.

• Project Budget Category: Select budget category/categories under $100,000, over
$100,000, or both.

51 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



• Artist Apprenticeship / Training Program (optional): For select projects, an
emerging public artist may be selected to work with an experienced public artist.
Indicate if you are interested in being matched as a mentor with an emerging public
artist. Or indicate if you are interested in being matched as an apprentice with an
experienced artist mentor.

• Race/Ethnicity Information (optional): For City reporting purposes only. This
information will not influence application results. Check all that apply.

Applications for the Oakland Pre-Qualified Artist Roster must be submitted online through the 
SlideRoom™ application system (https://www.slideroom.com/).  

Tutorials and guidance for using SlideRoom™ are available from the SlideRoom Applicant 
Help Center. Additional assistance in using the SlideRoom™ system is available directly by 
email at support@slideroom.com. Responses are typically provided within 48 business hours. 

DEADLINE 

Submissions must be received as a complete application in SlideRoom™ no later than 11:59 
PM Pacific Standard Time on July 31, 2024. We recommend submitting your complete 
application before 5:00 pm (Pacific Standard Time) to allow sufficient time to contact our 
program or SlideRoom™ staff regarding any difficulties. Please also note that City of Oakland 
offices will be closed after 5:00 PM. Incomplete, non-compliant and/or late submittals will not 
be reviewed, nor will materials not specifically requested in this call. This Call to Artists is also 
available online on the Cultural Affair Division’s website at www.oaklandculturalarts.org.  
For more information about the City of Oakland 2024 Pre-Qualified Artist Roster or the Public 
Art Program, please contact Kristen Zaremba, at kzaremba@oaklandca.gov / (510) 238-2155 
and/or Josie de Mira, at jdemira@oaklandca.gov / (510) 238-7033. 

APPLICANT WORKSHOP 

For artists who are interested in more information about this opportunity, the Oakland Public 
Art Program will host a free webinar that will cover strategies for making a strong application 
and provide an introduction to SlideRoom: M/DD/YYYY, 4:00 p.m. – 5:30 p.m. 

RSVP through MICROSOFT FORM link (will be added later) 

52 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024

https://help.liaisonedu.com/SlideRoom_Applicant_Help_Center
https://help.liaisonedu.com/SlideRoom_Applicant_Help_Center
mailto:support@slideroom.com
http://www.oaklandculturalarts.org/
mailto:jdemira@oaklandca.gov


PUBLIC ART PROGRAM POLICIES 

Acceptance of Proposals 

The City of Oakland Cultural Affairs Division reserves the right to reject all applications and/or 
subsequent design proposals or to augment the roster of applicants by direct invitation as 
needed.   

Proposal Policy 

If an artist or artist team is paid to develop a digital or physical proposal maquette, or other 
conceptual design materials for a proposal, the following policy shall apply. The Cultural 
Affairs Division shall: 

• At its sole discretion, have unconditional rights to own digital or physical proposal
boards or maquettes, or other design materials produced as a part of this selection
and/or commission process.

• Have the right to display and/or reproduce any maquettes or proposal commissioned,
whether selected for implementation or not.

• Require that all concepts, proposals and/or maquettes submitted are original and
unique.

Americans with Disabilities Act 

The selected artist(s) will be required to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act in 
addition to related federal, state and local codes and will be encouraged to develop 
artwork(s) sensitive to programmatic as well as physical accessibility issues. 

Other Requirements 

Any selected artists or artist teams, once recommended for a project and approved by the 
City, shall be asked to enter a contract with the City of Oakland for the duration of the project. 
All proposed locations and concepts for artworks are subject to approval by the City and/or 
other representatives. Depending on the specific scope of the project, prior to the issuance 
and throughout the duration of the contract, the artist may be required to secure and maintain 
various types of insurance, including Automobile Liability, General Liability, Fine Arts and 
other insurance as required by the City. 

All information contained herein does not constitute either an expressed or implied contract 
and these provisions are subject to change. 

53 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



54 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



55 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



56 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



57 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



58 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



59 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



60 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



61 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



62 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



63 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



64 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



65 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024



City of Oakland Public Art Advisory Committee March 2024
Committee Member Expertise, Tenures

Current

Representation: Er
ic

 M
ur

ph
y

Sa
ra

h 
M

ill
er

Ka
te

rin
a 

Le
ve

nt
i

Ka
itl

in
 K

us
hn

er

M
ar

io
 N

av
as

er
o 

 M
ar

cu
s 

Gu
ill

ar
d

Advocacy x
Architect/Engineer x
Artist x x x x
Arts Administrator x x x
Arts Policy x
Community Representative x x
Conservator x
Curator x x x x
Development- Economic 
Development- Private
Diversity (Cultural) x x
Educator x x
Graphic Design x x
Installation x x x x x
Landscape Architect
Legal
Maintenance x x x
Oakland Employment x x x
Oakland Resident x x x x
Project Management x x
Public Policy
Public Artist x
Urban Planner x
New Media & Video
Art Volunteer x
Council District 2 3 1 5 5 2

According to Council 
resolution, term began Oct-21 Feb-21 Oct-21 Nov-22 Oct-21 Oct-21

Term expirations Sep-24 Jan-24 Sep-24 Nov-25 Sep-24 Sep-24

# Terms served 2 1 1 1 1 1

66 of 66 PAAC Agenda Packet 5-6-2024


	1 PAAC Agenda Item I. 5-6-24
	2 PAAC 5-6-2024 Item II. Land Acknowledgement
	3 PAAC 5-6-24 Item III. PAAC 3-4-24 Minutes DRAFT.docx
	4 PAAC 5-6-24 Item IV. 2024.05.06_Oakland PAAC_Revisiting Broadway I-880 Public Art_OakDOT MPD staff memo_signed
	5 PAAC 5-6-24 Item IV. A - 2024.05.06 PAAC_Revisiting Broadway I-880 Public Art_OakDOT MPD
	Slide 1: Revisiting Broadway at  I-880 Public Art Project 
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 7
	Slide 8
	Slide 9
	Slide 10
	Slide 11
	Slide 12
	Slide 13
	Slide 14
	Slide 15
	Slide 16
	Slide 17
	Slide 18
	Slide 19
	Slide 20
	Slide 21
	Slide 22
	Slide 23
	Slide 24
	Slide 25
	Slide 26

	6 PAAC 5-6-24 Item IV. B - 2014.08.04_PAAC Item VII Broadway Underpass Hearing Agenda Report
	7 PAAC 5-6-2024 Item V. Pre-Qualified Artist Roster RFQ DRAFT
	Call to Artists:
	Oakland 2024 Pre-Qualified Artist Roster

	8 PAAC 5-6-24 Item. VII.a. Public Art Ordinance 13562 CMS
	9 PAAC 5-6-24 Item VII. PAAC Expertise Roster - March 2024
	Sheet1




